Bossier Parish Police Jury
Bentaon, Louisiana

Primary Government Financial Statements

As of and For the Year Ended December 31, 2041
With Supplemental information Schedules



Bossler Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana

Tabie of Contents
Page No.
Independent Auditors' Report -2
Required Supplementary information:
Managementi's Discussion and Analysis 3-10
Basic Financial Statements:
Government-wide Financial Staterments:
Statement of Net Assets 11
Statement of Activities 12
Fund Financial Staternents;
Balance Sheat - Governmental Funds 13
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Assets 14

Statement of Revenues, Expendituras, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmeniat Funds 15

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expendifures, and Changes

in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 18
Balance Sheet — Proprietary Fund 7
Staternent of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets — Proprietary Fund 18
Staternent of Cash Flows — Proprietary Fund 19

Notes to the Financial Staterments 20-47

Required Supplementary Information;

Budgetary Comparison Schedules:

General Fund 48
Highway Fund 49
Library Fund 50
Capital Improvernents 51

{Continued)



Bossier Parish Pofice Jury
Benton, Louisianza

Table of Contents
{Continued)
Page No,
Note to Required Supplementary information g2
Schedule of Funding Progress for Retiree Health, Dental, and Life Plans 53
Other Supplementary Information:
Supplemsntary Information Scheduies — Combining Schedules for
Non-Major Funds 64 - 56
Combiniiy Balance Sheet ~ Nonmajor Governmental Funds 57 =59
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund 8alances — Nonmajor Governmental Funds 80-62
Schedule of Cornpensation Paid Police Jurors 83
Schedule of Expanditures of Federal Awards 84
Report on internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Cther Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance With Government Auditing Stantards 85 ~ &6
Report on Compliance with Requirements That Could Have a Dirsct and
Material Effect on Each Major Program and on internal Control over
Compiiance in Accordance With OMB Cireular A-133 87-68
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 88
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 69
Schedules For Louisiana Legislative Auditor
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 70

Corrective Action Plan For Current Year Audit Findings 70



COOK & MOREHART

Certified Public Accountaniy
1215 HAWN AVENUE » SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71157 « P.O. BOX 78240 » SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA TI137-8240

TRAVIS B MOREHART, CPA TELEPHONE {318) 222.5418 FAX (3583 222-544)
A EDWARD BALL, UPA
VICKRIE D CASE, CPA
MEMBER
AMERICAN INSTITUTE
STUART L. REEKS, £PA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACUOUNTANTS

SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors’ )

Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying financial statemnents of the govemmental activities, business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bossier Parish Police Jury,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements
of the parish's primary govemment as listed in the iable of contents, These financial statements are the
responsibiity of the Bossier Parish Palice Jury's management.  Qur responsibility is fo express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in the United States of
America and the standards applicable fo financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basls, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reascnable basig for our opinions.

The financial statements do not include financial data for the Bossier Parish Police Jury's legally separafe
component units. Accounting principles generally accapted in the United States of America require the
financial data for those component units to be reported with the financial data of the primary government
uniess the Bossier Parish Police Jury also issues financial statements for the financial reporting eniity that
include the financial data for its component unils. The Bossier Parish Police Jury has not issued such
reporting entity finencial statements. This represents a departure from accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The assets, fiabilities, net assets, revenues, and expenses of the
aggregate discretely presented component units are indeterminable.

In aur apinion, because of the omission of the discretsly presented component units, as discussed
previously, the financial statements referred to previously do not present fairly, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the financial position of the aggregale
diseretely presented component unifs of the Bossier Parish Policy Jury as of December 31, 2011, or the
changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended.

Furher, in our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously prasent fairly, in all material respecis,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, each majer fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bossier Parigh Police Jury, as of December 31, 2011, and
the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash fiows thereof for the year then ended
in sonformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



In accordance with Government Auditing Standsrds, we have glso issued a report dated June 26, 2012, on
our considerafion of the Bossier Parish Police Jury's internal control over financizl reporting and on our fests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, reguiations, contracts and grant agreements and other
matiers. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the resulls of that testing, and not to previde an opinion on the internal control
over financial reporiing or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considerad in assessing the results of our audit

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United Stales of Amarica require that the management's
discussion and analysis on pages 3 — 10, budgetary comparison information on pages 48 — 52, and schedule
of funding progress for refiree heatth, dentsl, and life plans on page 53 be presented fo supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financlal reporting
for pfacing the basic financial statements in an approprate operational, economic, or historical context. We
have appled cerain limited procedures to the reguired supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management's responses fo our inguiries, the basic financial staternents, and other knowledge we
obfained during our audit of the basic financial statements, We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures o not provide us with sufficient evidence to
aexpress an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Bossier Farish Police Jury's basic financial siatements. The accompanying supplemental
information schedules listed in the table of contents and shown on pages 54 - §3, are presented for the
purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, shown on page 64, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.8. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Laocal Governments, and Non-Frofif Organizations, and is alsoe not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibiBity of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used o prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjecied to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciiing such information directly to the underlying
actounting and other records used o prepere the financial statements or to the financial statements
themsslves, and other additional procedures in accordarce with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinien, the information is fairly stated in all materiail respecis in relation to
the hasic financial statements as a whole.

Q&e&k + }’\M

Cook & Morehart
Ceriified Public Accountants
June 26, 2012



BOSSIER PARISH POLICE JURY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the Bossier Parish Police Jury’s financial performance provides an
overview of the Police Jury’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.
Please read it in conjunction with our financial statements, which begin on page 11.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

o The assets of the Police Jury’s government activities exceeded its liabilities at the close of
2011 by $259,512,716. Of this amount, $14,119,003 (unrestricted net assets) may be used
to mest the ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors in accordance with the Police Jury’s
fund designation and fiscal policies.

« The Police Jury’s net assets of our government activities increased by 16,604,331 or 7%.
The Police Jury’s net assets of our business-type activities are $1,235,054, which consist
entirely of investments in capital assets.

« In the Police Jury’s governmental activities, total general and program revepues were
$61,330,578 in 2011 compared to $73,116,092 in 2010.

s During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Police Jury had total expenses, excluding
depreciation, totaled $35,606,957, compared to $36,785,123 for 2010,

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The Statement of Net Assets and the
Statement of Activities (on pages 11-12) provide information about the activities of the Police Jury
as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Police Jury's finances. Fund financial statements
start on page 13. For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed
in the short term as well as what remains for finture spending. Fund financial statements alsg report
the Police Jury’s operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing
information about the Police Jury’s most significant funds.

Reporting the Police Jury as a Whole

QOur analysis of the Police Jury as a whole begins on page 11. One of the most important questions
asked about the Police Jury’s finances is “Is the Police Jury as a whole better off or worse off as a
result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report
information about the funds maintained by the Police Jury as a whole and about its activities in a
way that helps answer this question. These statements include all assets and liabilities using the
accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector
companies. Accrual of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of
when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Police Jury's nef assets and changes in them. You can think of the
Police Jury’s net assets — the difference between assets and liabilities — as one way to measure the



Police Jury’s financial health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the Police
Jury’s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You
will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the Pelice Jury’s
property tax base, to assess the overall health of the Police Jury.

In the Statemnent of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, we divide the Police Jury into two
kinds of activities:

Governmental activities — all of the expenses paid from the funds maintained by the Police Jury are
reported here, consisting primarily of personal services, materials and supplies, travel, repairs and
maintenance and other program services. Ad valorem taxes and sales taxes finance most of these
actvities.

Business-type activities — Activities of the Police Jury’s sewer systern are reported here.
Reporting the Police Jury’s Most Significant Funds

Our analysis of the major funds maintained by the Police Jury begins on page 13. The fund financial
statements begin on page 13 and provide detailed information about the most significant funds
maintained by the Police Jury — not the Police Jury as a whole. The Police Jury’s governmental
funds use the following accounting approaches:

Governmental funds — All of the Police Jury’s basic services are reported in governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that
are available for spending, These funds are reported using the modiffed accrual accounting method,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The
governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-ferm view of the Police Jury’s general
government operations and the expenses paid from those funds. Governmental fund information
helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
near future to finance certain Police Jury expenses. We describe the relationship (or differences)
between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities) and governmental funds in a reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds — Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in
the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. In fact, The Police Jury’s enterprise
funds (a component of the proprietary funds} are the same as the business-type activities we report
in the government-wide statements but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash
flows, for proprietary funds.



THE POLICE JURY AS A WHOLE

The Police Jury’s total net assets changed from a year ago, increasing from $242.908,385 to
$260,747,770. A comparative analysis of the funds maintained by the Police Jury is presented

below in Table 1.

Current and other asgets
Capital assef, net
Internal balances

Total assets

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets:
investment in capital
assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Tabie 1
Net Assets
CGiovernmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2611 2010
$ 69,766,331 § 76,472,751 b - $ -} 69,766,331 b3 76,47“2,75]
252,021,645 234,908,957 5,616,606 257,638,251 234,908,557
4,381,552 {4,381,552)
316,169,528 311,381,708 1,235,054 327,404,582 311,381,708
2,853,693 3,021,881 2,853,693 3,021,881
63,803,119 63,451,442 63,803,119 55,451,442
66,656,812 63,423,323 66.656,812 68,473,323
205545,695 189,937,136 1,235,054 206,780,749 189,937,136
39,848,018 45,690,036 39,348,018 49,690,036
14,119,003 3,281,213 14,119,003 3,281,213
% 259512716 $242908,385 $ 1,235,054 3 $ 260,747,770 $242,508.385

Net assets of the Police Jury’'s governmental activities increased by $16,604,331 or 7%. Net assets
of Police Jury’s business-type activities are $1,235,054. Unrestricted net assets, the part of net
assets that can be used to finance Police Jury’s expenses without constraints or other legal
requirements, increased from $3,281,213 at December 31, 2010 to $14,119,003 at December 31,

2011,



Table 2

Change in Net Assets
Covemmental Activities Business-type Activities Tatal
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services $ 2537009 8 2388309 3 - % - § 25337009 § 2,388,809
Operating grants and
contributions 16,686,956 26,596,655 16,686,956 26,596,655
Capital grants and
contributions 1,303,644 980,671 1,303,644 98051
General revenues
Ad valorem taxes 12,743,404 12,427,642 12,743,404 12,427,642
Sales taxes 19,681,279 21,651,826 19,681,279 21,651,826
Other taxcs 1,001,541 1,209,912 1,001,541 1,209,912
Franchise taxes 352206 374,338 352,206 274,330
Investment eamings 28,779 30,142 28,779 30,142
Ganiing taxrevenues 4,152,730 4,445.462 4,152,730 4,445,462
State revenue sharing 535,498 521,596 535,498 521,596
CGain on sale of land 293,946 293,946
Miscelfanenus revenues 2,307,532 2,205 101 2,307,532 2,255,101
Transfers (1,242,602) 1,242,602
Total revenues 60,087,976 73,116,092 1,242,602 61,330,578 73,116,092
Expenses
General government 8,640,346 8,432,996 8,640,345 8,432,596
Public safety 5547262 6,344,972 5,547,262 6,344,972
Public works 15,755,499 14,893,666 15,765,499 14,893,666
Public urilities 94,943 94,948
Health and welfare 3,562,835 3,890,387 3,562,835 3.890,387
Culture and recreation 5,246,774 4,815,427 5,246,774 4,815,427
Economic development 2.387.020 3,275,846 2,387,029 3,275,846
Interest on {ong-termdebt 2,248,952 297,977 2,248 952 2,197,977
Sewer 7.548 7,548
Total expenses 43,483,645 43,851,271 7,548 43,491,193 43,851,271
Increases (decreases)
in oot assets $ 16,604,331 $295264,821 $ 1,235.054 b & 17,539,385  §$29,264,821

Total revenrues decreased 311,785,514 or 16% from total revenues in the year ended December 31,

2010 of 873,116,092 to total revenues of $61,330,578 in the years ended December 31, 2011, due in
part to a decrease in operating grants and contributions, Our analysis below separately considers the
operations of the government and business-type activities.

Governmental Activities



Total reverues for the governmental activities decreased $13,028,116 from total revenues in the
year ended December 31, 2010 of $73,116,092 to total revenues of $60,087,976 in the year ended
December 31, 2011.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $43,483,645, which remained substantially the
same as the prior year. These costs were covered by $20,527,609 of program revenues, with the
remaining costs covered by property tax, sales, taxes and other general revenues.

Business-type Activities

Total revenues for the business-type activities were $1,242,602, which consisted of a transfer from
the governmental funds.

The cost of all business-type activities this year was $7,548 which consisted of depreciation
expernse.

THE POLICE JURY’S FUNDS

As the Police Jury completed the year, its governmenial funds (as presented in the balance sheet on
page 13) reported a combined fund balance of $67,000,137, which is less than last year's fund
balance of $68,721,812. The primary reason for the decrease in fund balance is decreased revenues
in operating grants and contributions.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights
The Police Jury adopted a budget for its General Fund for the year ended December 31, 2011, and

amended the budget one time during the year. The budgetary comparison is presented as required
supplementary information and shown on pages 48. Highlights for the year are as follows:

« General fund revenues and expenditures were in line with the amended budget.
The Police Jury’s General Fund balance of 83,435,439 reported on page 13 differs from the General

Fund’s budygetary fund balance of $639,991, reported in the budgetary comparison schedule on page
48. This is primarily due to the Police Jury budgeting on the cash basis of accounting,



CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At the end of December 31, 2011, the Police Jury had invested $257,638,251 in capital assets. (sec table 3

below)

L.and
Goodwill

Caonstruction in progress

Buildings
Tafrastructure

Equipment, furnishings, vehciles
Library books & materials

This years major additions included:

Land
Goodwill

Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Infrastructure

Table 3
Capital Assets At Year End -
{Net of Depreciation}
Governmental Activities Businass-type Activitites Total

2011 2010 20113 2011 2010

$ 11,006200 8§ 8193152 0§ 401,000 % 11,407,200 § 8,193,15
1,226,000 1,226,000

9,026,422 4,440,443 1,732,679 16,759,101 4,440,44
88,391,160 90,492,612 2,255,927 90,648,087 90,492,561
137,969,711 126,484,138 137,965,711 126,484,13
4,689,259 4,390,683 4,685,259 4,39G,68
938,893 907,924 938,893 907,92
3 252,021,645 $ 234,908%857 3 3,616,606 3 257,638,251 3 23490895

Furaiturs, eguipment & vehicles

Library books and information

$  3,226342
1,226,000
8,188,626
2,695,811
14,103,309
1,001,623
391,716

5 30,835437

Mare detailed information about the capital assets are presented in Note 7 to the financial statements.



Deht

Qutstanding debt of the Police Jury includes: $1,560,000 issued in 2005 for acquiring, construction,
improving and equipping the public library facilities and system, $5,000,000 issued in 2010 for acquiring
sewer systems to create a sewer district, $24,830,000 issued in 2010 for refunding of the courthouse
addition/renovation and jail construction projects, $4,885,000 issued in 2010 for refunding of the
courthouse addition/renovation and jail construction projects, $7,442,000 issued in 2010 for public
improvement projects in the parish of Bossier and $14,920,000 issued in 2007 for public projects in the
parish of Bossier,

Table 4
Outstanding Debt at Year End

Governmental Governmental
Activities Agtivities
2010 2011
Certificates of indebtedness,
Serias 2003 (backed by ad valorem
ax revenue in the Library Fund) 1,910,000 1,560,000
Revenue bonds,
Beries 2010 (backed by sales tax revenue
in Capital Improvements Fund) 5,060,000 5,000,000
Revenue bonds,
Series 2010A {backed by sales tax revenue
in Capital improverents Fund) 24,830,000 24,830,000
Revenue bonds,
Series 20108 (backed by sales tax revenue
it Capital Improvements Fund) 5,310,000 4,885,000
Revenue bonds,
Series 2010 Build America Bond
fbacked by sales tax revenue
in Capital Improvements Fund) 8,162,000 7,442,600
Revenue honds,
Series 2007
(LCDA Improvements) 15,575,000 14,920,000



Stafe law restricts the amount of debt that the Police Jury may issue. The aggregate principal amount of
debt may not exceed 10% of the assessed valuation for property tax purposes of all real and personal
property located within the parish. The Police Jury’s total debt outstanding at year end was well below this
limitation.

Other obligations include accrued vacation pay, special assessment debt reiating to paving of Valerie Lane
in Bossier Parish, and other post-employment obligations. More detailed information about the debt is
presented in Note 10 to the financial statements.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR®S BUDGETS

The Police Jury’s management considered many factors when setting a fiscal year December 31, 2012
budget. Amounts available for appropriation in the governmental funds are expected to increase due to an
increase in sales tax and gaming tax revenues. Ad valorem taxes will increase due to continued residential
and commercial development.

The Consolidated Waterworks / Sewerage District No. 1 (District) is planning certain water and sewer
projects and acquisitions for water / sewer infrastructure improvements within Bossier parish. The
estimated cost of those improvements are approximately $45,000,000. Funding for the improvements is
expected to be provided by a loan from the State of Louisiana, Department of environmental Quality for
$17,750,000; issuance of revenue bonds through the Louisiana Local Government Authority for
$11,835,000; and State of Louisiana capital outlay funds totaling approximately $15,500,000,

CONTACTING THE POLICE JURY’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens and taxpayers with a general overview of the
finances for those funds maintained by the police jury and to show the police jury’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact
the Bossier Parish Police Jury, P. O. Box 70, Benton, Louisiana 71008,

10



Assats
Cash and cash equivalents
investments
Restricted cash
Receivablas
Prepaid expenses
Deferred bond issuance costs
Capital assets, nel
Internal balances
Total assets

Liahilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Long-term liabilities:
Bue within ane year
Due in more than one year
Total liahilities

Net Assels
Invested in capital assets, nef of
refated debt
Restricted for:
Capital Projects
Public Works
Public Safaty
Economic Development
Culture and Racreation
Debt service
Health and Welfare
Unrestricted
Total net assets

Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Statement of Net Assels
December 31, 2011

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 398657698 3 $ 39,657,698
34,999 34,898
9,685,859 0,685,853
16,630,300 16,630,300
829,638 829,636
2,927 839 2,827,839

252,021,645 5.616,608 257,638,251
4,381,552 {4,381,552)

326,168,528 1,235,054 327,404,582
2,853,693 2,853,883
6,814,278 6,814,276

56,088 843 56,988,843
66,656,812 66,656,812

205,545 695 1,235,054 206,780,749

4 572 983 4,572,983
11,552,533 11,552,533

2,154 933 2,154,933
739,575 739,575
12,808,167 12,809,167
4,385,078 4,385,078
3,833,751 3,633,751
14,113,003 14,119,003

g 250512718 3 1,235,054 § 260747770

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

11
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Reconciiation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Staternent of Net Assets
December 31, 2011

Fund batances - total governmental funds $ 67,000,137

Amaounts reported for governmental activities in the staternent of net assets are
different because:

Capita) assets used in governmental activities are not fingncial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 252,021,845

Deferred bond issuance costs are capitalized and amortized over the life
of the bond issue for the government-wide statements, but are reporied
a3 expenditures in the governmental funds.
Debt issuance costs 2,927,839

Long-term liabilifies, including bonds payable, accrued interest payable,
and other post-employment benefit payable are not due and payable
ir the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. (64,305,915)

Cther long-term assets are not available 1o pay for current-period expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds. 1,038,374
Tna nonaflocation method of accounting for prepayments Is used in the fund
statements, since the prepayment does not provide expendable financial

resources, 829,636

Net assets of governmentat activitias $ 250,512,716

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Bossiler Padsh Policy Jury
Banton, Louisiang

Reconciiiation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds o the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2041

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds

Amounts reporied for govermmeantal activities in the statement of activities
are different bacause:

Governmental funds report capital cullays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assels i allocated over
their estimated usefu! lives and reported as depraciation expense,
This Is the amount by which capital outlays (313,907 447) excesded
depreciation ($7,876,688) in the current period.

The net effect of various transactions involving capital assels (sales,
frade-ins, donated infrastructure, efe.) is to increase net agsels.

Bond issuance costs are capilalized and amortized over the life of the
bond issue for the government-wide statements, but are reported as
expenditures in the governmental funds.

Bond [ssuance costs

The repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes current
financial resources of governmental funds.

The payment to refunded bond escrow agent consumes
current financial resources of governmental funds,

The nanallocation method of accounting for prepayments is used in the
fund stalements, since the prepayment does not provide expsndable
financial resources,

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
respurces are nel reponed as revenues in the funds.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current inancial resources and therefors ara not reportad a3
expenditures in the funds.

Compensated absences

Other post-employment benefits liabilities

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is reported in the government-
wihie stalement of activities and changes In nst assels, but does not require

the use of current financial resources; therefore, accrued interest axpense
Is not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Change in net assets of governmenlal aciivities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

18

3

{1,721,875)

8,030,758

11,081,228

{258,520)

3,156,443

{4,785)

219,894

{18,084)
{1,490,055)

(391,584)
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Balance Sheet
Proprietary Fund
December 31, 2011

Assels
Nonourrent assets:

Capital assels:
Land
Goodwill
Construction in process
Plant and equipment
Less: accumulated deprecigtion
Total noncumrent assets

Total assets
Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities;
Advance from police jury
Total noncurrent fiabilites
Total liabilities
Net assets
invested in capital assets, net
of related debt

Total net assets

Total liabilites and net assets

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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401,000
1,226,000
1,732,679
2,264,475

{7.548)

5,516,606

5,616 606

4,381,552

4,381,552

4,381,652

1,235,054

1,235,054

5,616,606




Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Statement of Revenuss, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Fund
Fer the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Operating expenses:

Depreciation ! 7548
Total operating expenses 7,548
Operating income (ioss) {7,548]

Capita! coniributions 1,242,602
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,242,602
Change in net assels 1,235,054

Met assets - beginning of year

Net assels - end of year 3 1,238,054

The accompanying notes are an integratl part of this statement,
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Statement of Cash Flows
Praprietary Fund
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Met increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash, Beginning of year
Cash, End of year 3

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided
ByA{Used in} Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) 3 {7,548}
Adjustments 1o reconcile operating toss to nat cash
provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciztlon expense 7,048
Net Cash Flows From Operating Aclivities 5

Supplemental Schadute of Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activity:

Capital assets acquired $ 5624154

Advance from police jury (4,381,552}

Contributed capital from police jury {1,242 602)
Incraase (decrease) in cash R

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.
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Bossiar Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

INTRODUCTION

The Bossier Parish Police Jury is the governing authority for Bossier Parish and is a pofitical subdivision of
the State of Louisiana. The Police Jury is govemed by 12 jurors representing the various districts within the
parish. The jurors serve four-year terrns that expire in December 2015,

Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.} 33:1236 gives the police jury various powars in requiating and directing the
affairs of the parish and its inhabitants. The more notable of those are the power to make regulations for its
own government, (o regulate the construction and maintenance of roads, bridges, and drainage systems; and
to provide for the health and welfare of the poor, disadvantaged, and unemployed in the parish. Funding fo
accamplish these tasks is provided by ad valorem taxes, sales tax, beer and alcoholic beverage penmits,
state revenue sharing, gaming tax revenues, and varlous other state and federal grants.

{1}

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The Bossier Parish Police Jury's financial statements are prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles {GAAP). The Govemnmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
responsitle for establishing GAAF for state and loca! governments through its pronouncements
(Statements and Interpretations}. The accompanying basic financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with GASE Statement 34, Basic Financial Statements and Management's
Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Govemments, issued in June 1999. The more
significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the Bossier Parish Police Jury are
discussed below.

A, Reporting Entity

As the governing authority of the parish, for reporting purposes, the Bossier Parish Police Jury is
tre financial reporting entity for Bossier Parish, The financial reporting entity consists of {(a) the
primary government {police jury), (b) organizations for which the primary government s
financially accountable, and (c) other organizations for which pature and significance of their
relationship with police jury are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial
statements o be misleading or incomplete.

GASB Statement No. 14 established criteria for determining which cornponent units should be
considered part of the Bossier Parish Polfice Jury for financial reporting purposes. The basic
criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting enfily is financial
accountability. The GASE has set forth criteriz to be considered in determining financial
accountabitity. This criteria includes;

1. Appointing a voting majorily of an organization's governing body, and
a. The ability of the police jury to impose its will on that organization and/or

b. The potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits & or impose
specific financial burdens on the police jury.

2. Organizations for which the police jury doss not appoint a voting majority but are flscally
dependent on the police fury.

{(Cantinued)
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Bossier Parigh Police Jury
Banton, Louisiana
Notas to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011
{Continued)

3. Organizations for which the reporting entity financial statements would be misleading i
data of the organization is not included because of the nature or significance of the
relationship.

Blandad Compenent Unit — Component units that are [egally separate from the police jury, but
are so infertwined with the police jury that they are, in substance, the same as the police jury are
blended component units, For a component unit to be blended, the organization's hoard and the
police Jury must be substantively the same, or the organization must provide services entirely or
almost entirely to the pofice jury. The following companent unit is reported as part of the police
jury and blended with the appropriate police jury funds:

Bossier Parish Library. Bossier Parish Library does not possess all the corporate powers
necessary o make them a legally separate entity and the police jury holds the Library's
corperate powers, Therefore, we conclude that they are part of the police jury and thelr financial
staternents should be blendead with those of the police jury.

Consolidated Waterworks / Sewserage District No. 1. The board of the Consolidated
Waterworks f Sewerage District No. 1 is substantially the same as the pofice jury and policy jury
can impose its wili on the District by significanly influencing the activities of the Dishricl.
Therefore, we conclude that they are part of the police jury and their financial staternents should
be blended with those of the police jury.

Discrete Component Units — Camponent units that are legally separate from the police jury,
but are financially accountable to the police jury, or whose relationship with the police Jury are
such that exclusion would cause the polics jury's financial statements to be misleading or
incomplate are discretely presented. The police jury has identified the following discrete
component units;

Bossier Parish Sheriffs Office, Bossier Parish Clerk of Court, Bossier Parish Tax
Asgessor, and the District Attorney for the Twenty--Sixth Judicial District. Even though
these are independently elected officials and are legally separate from the police jury, they are
fiscally dependent on the police jury. The officials are fiscally dependent because the polica jury
has approval authority over the officials’ capital budget. The polica jury has approval authority
over the officials’ capital budget because the office space for the officials is fumnished by the
pofice jury, maijor capital purchases for the officials are inciuded in the police jury's overall
budget, and title to real property is in the name of the police jury. By using the fiscal dependency
criterion, we conclude that these organizations are component units of the police jury.

Basgsler Parish Communications District Number One. This entity was created by the police
jury. The Communications District is governed by a Board of Commissioners whick are
appointed by the police jury. The police jury is financially accountable for the communication
district because it appoints a voting majority of the governing board and has the ability to impose
its will on them.

(Continued)
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Bosgsier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louistana
Notes o Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

{Continued)

Other Special Districts

There are a number of spectal districts located in Bossier Parish {fire and ambulance} that each
provide services to 2 limited number of parish clizens. The pofice jury appoints all board
members of those districts which do not inciude a municipality within their boundaries.
Therefore, the police jury can impose its will on these districts. While these districts are
responsible for obtaining voter approval for the levy of taxes or debt issuance, all related
Louisiana State Bond Commission approvals must be obtained through the police jury. The
police jury appoints bwo of the five board members of those districts which include a municipality
and therefore cannct impose ifs will on these entities. However, it would be misleading fo
nclude some like districts in the financial staterments while excluding others. These agencies
are:

East-Central Bossier Parish Fire Proteclion District N, 1
South Bossier Parish Fire Protection District No. 2

lvan Fire Protection District No. 3

Benlon Fire Protection District No. 4

Northeast Bossier Parish Fire Protection No. §

Bossier Parish Emergency Medical Services District

Fire Protection District No, 7, Parish of Bossier

Complate financial statements of the individual component units may be obtained from their
respective adminisiration offices or from the Bossier Parich Police Jury at the Bossier Parish
Courthouse in Benton, Louisiana.

The police jury has chosen to issue financial statements of the primary government {police: jury)
oniy, therefore, none of the previously Tisted discrete component units are included in the
accompanying financial statements.

GASB Staternent No. 14 provides for the issuance of primary govemment financial statements
that are separate from those of the reporting entity. However, the primary government's {police
jury} financial statements are not a substitute for the reporting entity's financial statements. The
accompanying primary government financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental units. These financial
statements are not intended to and do not report on the reporting entity but rather are intended to
reflect only the financial statements of the primary government (police jury).

Other Related Qrganizations

Considered in the determination of component units of the reporting entity were the following:
CypressTBiacK Bayou Recreation and Water Conservation District and Shreveport-Bossier
Conyeqt;on and Tourist Bureau. The police jury appoints only one (1) board member and has
no significant contact or influence to the recreation district and tourist bureau.

The pgiiqe jury appoints one (1) of seven (7) board members of the Caddo-Bossier Port
Commission but has no significant contact of infiuence within the Port Commission,

(Continued)
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Bossiar Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiang
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011

(Continued}

The police jury appoints the board members of the Industriai Development Board of the Parish
of Bossier, Inc., but does not have the abliity to impose its will and no financiatl benefittburden
relationship exists between them.

It was determined that these governmental entities are not camponent units of the Bossier
Parish Police Juty reporting entity because of the reasons listed above.

Basic Financlal Statements - Government-Wide Statements

The Bossier Parish Police Jury's basic financial statements include both govermment-wide
{reporting the funds maintained by the Bossier Parish Police Juty as a whole) and fund fingncial
statements (reporting the Bossier Parish Police Jury's major funds). Both the government-wide
and fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either govermnmental or business
type. The Consolidated Waterworks / Sewerage District No. 1 is classified as business-lype
activities. All other funds of the police jury are categorized as governmental activities.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental activities and business-
type activiies columns are presented on a consotidated basis and are reported on a full accrua),
economic rasource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables, as well as
long-term debt and obligations. The Bossier Parish Police Jury's net assets are reported in three
parts — invested in capital assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net
assels.

The govemment-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
Bassier Parish Police Jury's functions. The functions are also supported by general government
revenues (property, sales and use taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, fines, permits and
charges, etc.). The Staternent of Activities reduces gross expenses {inchuding depreciation) by
related program revenues, operating, and capital grants. Program revenues must be directy
associated with the function. Operating granis Include operating-specific and discretionary
{either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants columin refiects capital-specific grants,

Propristary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
defivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund's principal ongoing operstions of
providing water and sawer services.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by genera! revenus (property, sales and use
taxes, certain intergovemmental revenues, fines, permits and charges, etc.}.

This government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Bossler Parish Police Jury as an
entlity and the change in the Bossier Parish Folice Jury's net assets resulting from the current
year's acfivilies.

. Basic Financial Statements - Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Bossier Parish Police Jury are recorded in individual funds in
the fund financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separste set of self-
balancing accounts that comprises its assets, fiabiiiies, reserves, fund eguity, revenues and
expenditures/expenses. The verious funds are reported by generic classification within the
financial staterments.

{Continued)
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011
{Continued)

The following fund types are used by the Bossier Parish Police Jury:

Governmental Funds — the focus of the governmental funds’ measurement {in the fund
statemnents) is upon determination of financial posiion and changes in financial position
(sources, uses, and batances of financial resourees) rather than upen net income. The following
is a description of the governmental funds of the Bossier Parish Police dury:

a. General fund is the general operating fund of the Bossier Parish Police Jury. itis
used to account for all financial resourcas axcept those required to be accounted for
in ancther fund,

b. Special revenus funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes other
than dabt sesvice or capital projects.

c. Debt service funds are used to account for all financial resources that are restricted,
committed, or assigned to expenditure for principal and interest.

d. Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources that are restrictad,
committed, or assigned o expenditure for capital cutlays.

Proprietary Funds - the focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of
operating income, changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. The generally
accepled accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector.
The following is a description of the proprietary fund of the police jury:

a, Enterprise funds are required to be used o account for operations for which a fee is
charged o external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with
debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, {b} has third party
requirements that the cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered
with fees and charges, or {¢) establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy
designed to recover similar costs. The Consolidated Waterworks / Sewerage District
is reported in the enterprise fund.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major fonds in the govermmental category.
Nenmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column, GASS Statement No. 34 sets
forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assels, labilifes, revenues, or axpendiiuresiexpenses
of fund category) for the determination of major funds.

The following major funds are presented in the fund financial staternents:

General Fund — accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another furd,

Highway Fund — accounts for property taxes, sales taxes, gaming revenues, grants, and various
other revenues which are used to fund the construction and maintenance of parish highways,
streets, and bridges.

lLibrary Fund — accounts for property taxes and various other revenues used o fund the
operation and maintenance of the parish fibraries.
{Continued)
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Loulsiana
Notes to Financiat Statements
December 31, 2011
{Continued)

Capital improvements Fund — accounts for the sales taxes received for capital improvement
purposss, including the construction and maintenance of a maximum securfly jail and
courthouse facilities.

BABS LCDA — accounts for the proceeds of Build America Bonds and the use of such procesds.

Consdlidated Waterworks / Sewerage District No. 1 - The Consolidated Waterworks / Sewerage
District was created by the Bossier Parish Palice Jury for the purpose of acquiring a waterworks
and sewerage system, and constructing and acquiring improvements and extensions to the
waterworks and sewerage system. This fund is reported as an enterprise fund in the
accompanying financial statemnents.

Basls of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to the point at which revenues or expenditures are recognized in the
accounts and reported in the financial statements. It relates {o the timing of the measurements
made regardless of the measurement focus applied.

1, Accrual

The governmental funds in the government-wide financial statements are presented on the
accrual basls of accounting. Revenues are recognized when eamed and expenses are
recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Agcrual:

The governmental funds financial statements are presanted on the modifled accrual basis of
accounfing, Under modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recorded when
susceptible to accrual, e, both measurable and avsilable. “Available” means coliectivle
within the current period or within 60 days after year end. Expenditures are generally
recognized under fhe modified accrual basis of accounting when the related fability is
incurred.  The exception to this general rule s that pringipal and interest on general
ohiigation long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due,

Budgets
The Policy Jury uses the following budget practices:

Propased budgets for the ensuing year are prepared by the Treasurer during October of sach
year. During the rmonth of November, the finance committee reviews the proposed budgets and
makes changes as it deems appropriate. The availability of the proposed budgets for public
inspection and the date of the public hearing on the budgets are then advertised in the official
fournal. The police jury holds a public hearing on the proposed budgets in order to receive
comments from the public and other interested parties. Changes are made to the proposed
budgets based on the public hearing and the desires of the police jury as a whole, The budgets
are then adopted during a regular meeting or a special meeting held no Iater than 15 days prior
to the beginning of the fiscal year, and notice is published in the official journal,

(Continued)
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Bossiar Parish Police Jury
Benton, Lovisiana
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2011
(Continued)

The police jury receives periodic budget comparison statements during the year that are used as
a tool to control the operations of the parish, The Treasurer presents necessary budgei
amendments to the police jury duting the year when, in their judgment, actual operations differ
materially from those anticipated In the original budgets. During a regular or special meeting, the
police Jury reviews the proposed amendments, makes changes as it feels necessary, and
formally adopts the amendments. The adoption of the amendments s included in the police jury
minutes pubiished in the official journat.

The police juiy exercises budgetary control at the functional lavel.  Within funetions, the
Treasurer has the authority to make amendments of up to 5%, as necessary. Unexperled
appropriations lzpse &t year end and must be reappropriated in the next year's budget to be
expended.

The availabifity of proposed budgets and the date of the public hearing for the 2011 budgets
were published in the official journal on December 1, 2014, The 2011 budget hearings were
held, and the budgets adopted at the jury mesting on December 15, 2010. Notice of adoption of
the budgets was subsequently advertised in the official journal.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the police jury adopted budgets on a cash basis for all
funds.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Invesiments

Cash includes amounts in petty cash, demand depasits, interest bearing demand deposits, and
time deposits.  Cash equivalents Include amounts in time daposits and those investments with
original maturities of 90 days or less. Under state law, the police jury may deposit funds in
demand deposits, interest bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits
with state banks organized unider Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or under
the laws of the United States.

Investments are limited by R.8. 33:2855 and the pofice jury's investment policy. Investments are
reported at fair value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the Sewer Fund considers all highly fquid
investments (including restricted assets) with a matunity of three months or less when
purchased to be cash equivalents.

. Restricted Cash and Investments

Restricted cash and invesiments represent amounts required by debt covenants o be
segregated for caphal projects.

. Deferred Bond issuange Cost

In the govemnment-wide statemnents, issuance costs are deferred and amortized gver the term of

the bonds using the straight-ine method, with approximate the effective interest method.

Unamortized issuance costs are recorded as a separate line Bem on the Statement of Net

g;;sgts. Included in interest expense for tha year ended Decermnber 31, 2011 was amortization of
827,

{Continued)
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For bond refundings resulting in the defeasance of debt reported in the governmentwide
financial statements, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount
of the old debt is deferred and amorntized as a component of interest expenses.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, except for infrastructure, purchased or acquired with an eriginal cost of $5,000 or
more are reporied at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Infrastructure assets purchased
or acquired with an osiginal cost of $200,000 or more are reported at historical cost or estimated
nistorical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the date received.

Additions, improvements, and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as
incurred, Depreciation on all assets Is provided on the stralght-line basis over the foliowing
estimated useful lives:

Buildings 40-75 years

Infrastructure 10~50 years

Furniture 7-10 years

Eguipment 5-30 years

Vehicias 5-25 years

Library books and information & years
Reveriues

Ad valorem taxes and the related state revenue sharing are recorded in the year the taxes are
assessed. Ad valorem taxes are assessed on a calendar year basis, become due on Novernbar
15 of each year, and become delinquent on December 31. The taxes are generally collected in
December of the current year and January and February of the ensuing year. Sales tax
revenues are recorded in the period in which the underlying exchange has ccoured. Gaming
tax revenues are recorded in the period during which the exchange transactions on which the
tax is imposed occur, Fines, forfeitures, fees, and court costs are recognized in the period they
are collected by the Bossier Parish Sheriff. Interest income on demand and time deposits is
recorded when earned.

Federal and state grants are recorded when the police Jury is entitted to the funds, except for
certain federal grants which require funds not expended to be returned to the funding source.
On those grants revenue is recognized only upon expending those funds. Grant funds received
but not expended are reflected in the financial statements as deferred revenus,

. Prepaid Hems

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid tems in the government-wide financial statements.

{Continued)
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L, Defarred Revenue

Deferred revenues arise when assets are recognized hefors the revenue recognition criteria
have been satisfied. On governmental fund financial staterments, receivables that wers not

collected within the available period are recorded as deferred revenue.
M. Net Aszels

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabiliies. Net assets invested in capital
assels, net of related debt consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by
the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition, construction, or improvement
of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on
their use either through constitutional provisions or enabling legisiation adopted by the police jury
or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or reguiations of other
governments. The polica jury's policy is to first apply restricted resources when an expense is
incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

N. Sales Taxes

During 19985 a special alection was held in whith a 1 %% sales tax was passed in the Rurai
Sales Tax District of the Parish of Bossier, State of Louisiang. The sales tax is to be used for
opening, operating, constructing and maintaining the public roads, bridges and drainage
facilities.

During 1889, a special election was held in which a %% sales tax was passed in the Sales Tax
District No. 1 of Bossier Parish, State of Louisiana. The sales tax is 1o be used for constructing,
impraving, acquiring, operating and maintzining facilities and equipment, ambulance service and
otherwise paying the cost of ambulance service for the residents of Bossier Parish.

During 2000, a special election was held in which a %% sales tax was passed in the Parish of
Bossier, Sate of Louisiana. The sales tax is to be allocated 70% to the Bossier Parish Police
Jury and 30% to the Law Enforcement District of the Parish of Bossier, represented by the
Sheriff of Bossier Parish. The parish's share is to be used for capital Improvement purposes
including a maximum security jail and courthouse facilities. The 30% which is aliocated to the
Law Enforcement District of the Parish is sent directly to the Sheriff of Bossier Parish and is
not reflected in the financial statements of the police jury.

Q. Compensated Absences

Employees of the police jury eamn from & 1o 15 days of vacation leave each year, depending on
their lengths of service. In the event that available vacation is not used by the end of the benefit
year, employees will be allowsd to cary over all unused vacation ime. Upon termination of
employment, unused vacation benefits will be paid, up to a maximum of six {8) months.
Accurnulated vacation leave, or a portion thereof, may be converted to additional retirement
benefit credit upon application for normal retirement, based on the rules and regulations
determined by the refirement system to which they contribute.

{Continued)
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Employees of the palice jury will accrue sick leave benefits which are calculated on the basis of
a "benefit year” at the rate of 12 days per year. Unused sick leave will be allowed to accumulate
without limit. Unused sick leave benefits will not be paid to employees while they are employed
or upon terrination of empigyment.

Employees of the library eam from & to 24 days of vacation leave each year, depending on their
professional status. Employees may carry no more than one-half of their normal yeary benefit
forward to the next benefit year. Upaon termination of employment, employees will be paid for
unused vacation time that they are eligible for according fo the police jury policy. Employees
earn 12 days of sick leave each year that may be accumulated without fimit. Accumulated sick
leave is used in the employee's retirement beneflt computation. Accumulated sick leave is
forfeited upon termination of employment.

The current portion of compensated absences payable (the amount estimated to be used during
the period of availability) is recorded as a liability in the fund financial statements. The entire
balance of compensated absences payable is recognized as a liability in the government-wide
financial statements. The non-current portion represents a3 reconciling item between the fund
and govemnment-wide statements.

Interfund Activity

interfund activity is reported as either loans, reimbursements, or transfers. Loans are reporied
as interfund recelvables and payables as appropriate and are subject fo elimination upon
consolidation. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiing fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement, Transfers between
govermmental funds are netted as part of the reconciliation o the govemment-wide Gnancial
statements.

. Use of Estimates

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabiities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and Gabilities, and reported revenues and expenses. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

. Long-Term Obiligations

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations
afe reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities in the statement of net
assets. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicabie bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of related debt.

In the fund financial statements, govermmental funds recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current pericd. The face amount of the
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other
financing uses, Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt procesds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures,
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S. Fund Balance

GASB has issued Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmenta! Fund Type
Definitions, which defines the different types of fund balances that a governmental entity must
use for financial reporting purposes. GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be
properly reported within one of the fund balance categories list below.

1. Nonspendable fund balances are amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
{a) not in spendable form, such as inveniory or prepaid expenses, or (b) legally or
contractuaily required to be maintained intact, such as a trust that must be retzined in

perpetuity.

2. Restricted fund balances are restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources
arg either  {a) externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contiibutors, or faws or regulations
of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legisiation.

3. Committed fund balances include amounts that can be used only for the specific
purposes as a result of constraints imposed by the Police Jury {the Police Jury's highest level
of decision making authority). Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose
unless the Police Jury removes those constraints by taking the same type of action (i.e.
legisiation, resclution, or ordinance),

4, Assigned fund balances are amounts that are constrained by the Police Jury's intent to
be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed,

5. Unassigned fund balance are the residual classification for the Police Jury's general
fund and include ali spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.

When both restricted and unrestrictad fund balances are available for use, it is the Police
Jury's policy to use restricted fund balance first, then unrestricted fund balence. Furthermore,
comnitted fund balances are reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then
unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounis in any
of those unrestricted fund balance classifications can be used,

New Accounting Standards

Effective January 1, 2011, the police jury implemented GASBE Statement No. B4, “Fund Bafance
Reporting and Govemment Fund Type Definitions.” The objective of this Statement is to enhanca
the usefulness of fund balance information by providing clearer fund balance classifications that can
be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental fund type definitions. The
categories of fund balance presented in the police juny’s financial statements changed as a resulf of
implementing this Statemnent.

{Continued)
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Levied Tares

The following is & summary of authorized and levied ad valorem taxes for the primary government
for the year ended December 31, 2011

Authorized Levied Expiration
Mitlage Millage Date
Parishwide taxes:
General maintenance:
Cutside municipalites 4.00 283 Statutory
Within municipalities 200 1.31 Statutory
Road maintenance 1.99 1.88 2017
Library 8.31 7.48 20158
Health unit maintenance B2 B8z 2017
Carrectional facilities 300 2.32 2021

The differences between authorized and levied millages are the result of the reassessment of
taxable property requirad by Aricle 7, Section 23 of the Louisiana Constitution of 1574,

Cash, Cash Equivalants, and Investments

At December 31, 2011, the police jury has cash, cash aguivalents and investments (book balances),
totaling $49,378,556 as detafied below.

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2011 (book balances) totaled $49,343,557, of
which $9,685,858 is shown as restrictad. These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates
market. Under state iaw, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by
federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The
merket value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal
the amount on deposit with the figcai agent

investments

At December 31, 2011, the police jury had investments totaling $34,989 consisting of U.S.
Treasyry Bills and Notes with maturity dates in February, 2012, The market value of this
particular type of invesiment is not materially different from its carrying amount. The
investments are in the name of the police jury and are held by the police jury's fiscal agent.

. Credit Risk

Custodial cradit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits
may not be returned to it. As of December 31, 2011, $8,017,042 of the Polica Jury's bank
nalances totaling $50,738,158 were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

(Continued)
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Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank's

trust department not in the Pollce Jury's name;

Cash and cash equivalenis

Even though the pledged securiies are considered uncollaterglized (Category 3} under the
provisions of GASB Statement 3, R.S. 321228 Imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial
bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified that the fiscal

agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.

D. Resbricted Cash and investments

Restricted cash at December 31, 2011, consists of amounts restricted for the acquisition,
consiruction, or improvement of streels and roads and waterworksisewerage facilities within

the parish.
Receivables
Tha following is & summary of receivables af Dacernber 31, 2011

Class of
Receivable
Ad valorem taxes
Sales and use laxes
intergovernmental
Grants
Fees, charges, and
commissions for services
Fines and forfeltures
Gaming
Mineral leases
Other

Total ~ fund and government-wide stetements

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses at December 31, 2011, consisted of the following:

Class of Payable
Salaries and henefits

Ancounts
Compensated absences
Total - fund statements

Accrued interest
Total - government-wide statements

{Continued)
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Capital asset activity for the vear ended December 31, 2011, was as follows:

Balance at Baiance at
Jan. 1, 2011 Transfers Additions Defetions Dec. 31, 2011
Governmental Aclivities:
Capitat assets, not being depraciated:
Land $ 8,183,152 $ 2825342 3% {12,284) § 11,008,200
Construction in progress 4,440,443 {2,608, 161) 7,357,587 {163,457) 9,026422
Total capital assets, not
bairg depreciated 12,633,595 {2.608,161} 10,182,839 {175,751} 20,032,622
Capltal assets, being depreciated:
Buiidings and improvements 106,647 208 162,047 431,336 107,230,588
Infrastructure 158,953,570 1,554,484 14,103,308 174,611,343
Furniture, equipment & vehicles 9,281,508 1,001,623 (72,051} 10211170
Library books and information
material 3,347 487 391,716 3,738,203
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 278,223,861 1,706,511 15,027,084 {(72,051) 285,792 305
Less accumulated depreciation;
Buildings and Improvements {16,154,584) (2,684,835) {18,839,429)
Infrastructurg {32,469,432) (4,172,200} (36,641,632)
Furniture, equipment & vehicles (4,8206,810) {658,906) 27,905 (5,521,911
Library books and information
materlat (2,438 563 {360,747} {2,800.210)
Total accumulated depreciation (55 554 459) {7.876,688) 27,905 (63,803,282}
Total capital assels, being
depreciated, net 195 232 753 1,706,611 8 051,288 {44,148) 204,045 414

Governmental activilles capital
assets, net

Drepreciation expense was charged to Governmental Activites as follows:

$234,808857 §

(801.650) § 18234235

$

{219,897) $252,021.845

Judicial 4285
Public safety 86 780
Public warks 5874729
Healih and welfara 18,156
Culture and recreation 568,714
Capital projects 198 430
Economic devetopment 892,559
General government - other 222,035

$ 7876688
{Confinued)
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Baiance at Balance at
Jan. 1, 2011 Transfers Additions Deletions Dec. 31, 2011
Business-Type Activifies:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 401,000 $ 401,000

Goodwilf 1,226,000 1,226,000

Construction in progress 901,850 831,028 1.732 678
Total capital assets, not

baing depreciated 901,650 2,458,029 3,359,67¢
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 2,264,475 2,264,475

Total capilal agssets,
being depreciated 2,204,475 2,264 475
Less accumulated depreciation:

Buildings and improvements {7,548) {7,548)
Tatal accumulated depreciation {7,548} (7,548)
Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net 2,256,927 2,256,927
Governmenial activities sapita!
assets, net b3 901,650 $ 4,714,956 3 55618508

Depreciation expense was charged to Business-Type Activites ag follows:

Puklic works 7,548
$ 7.548

{Continued)
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Interfund balances, on the fund statements, at December 31, 2011 consisted of the following:

Transfer To
General
Highway
Non-Major
Governmental
Funds
Total

Mosn-fajor
Capital Governmental
Highway Improvements Funds Total
5 83760 § 11300 % 822 % 75,883
10,060 10,000
2,022 4,351 8,373
$ 65782 % 11,300 $ 15,174 § 82,256

The interfund balances are the result of the time lag between dates that (1) interfund goods and
services are provided or reimbursable expenditures ocour, (2) transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and {3) paymenis between funds are made.

Interfund Transfers
Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2011 consisted of the
following:
Transfer Frem
Mon-Major
Capital Govemmental
Transfer To General Highway Libeary improvements LEDA Funds Toial
Generat 3 0 75000 8 $ 5 $ 1226039 $ 1,301.038
Highway 800,000 100,418 800,416
Non-Major
Govemmental
Funds 509,471 1,233,205 414,000 5,828 000 §32,777 §.615.453
Totel § 503471 § 1308205 § 414000 § 6626000 3 § 1'959:?2:: $ 108158908

Transfers are used to {1) mave revenues from the fund that statue or budget requires to coflect
tham io the fund that statue or budget requires to expend them, {2) move receipts restricted to
debt service from the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service
payments become due, and {3) use unrasiricted revenues coliected in the generat fund to finance
various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Transfers in the government-wide financial statements consist of the transfer of capital assets
purchased with capital outlay funding from the sewer construction govemmental fund to the
Consolidated Waterworks / Sewerage District No. 1 enterprise fund in the amount of $1,242,602.

(Continued)
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Long~Term Liabilities

Long~term liability activity for the year ended Decamber 31, 2011, was as jollows:
Amounts

Baginning Ending Due Within
Balance  _Addiffions  Reductions _ Bglance = _One Year
Cerlificate of Indebtedness:

Cerificates of Indebtedness,
Series 2005
{Libvary) 8§ 1910000 § - B( 350000 § 1580000 S 365000

Total certificate of
indebtedness 1.810.000 - { 350.000) 1,560,000 365,000

Revenue Bonds:

Sales Tax Bond 2019 5,000,000 -~ - 5,000,000 2,455,000
Sales Tax Bond 2010A 24,830,000 - - 24 830,000 -
Sales Tax Bond 20108 8,310,000 - { 1,425 000) 4,885,000 2,415,000
Serles 2010 Build America Bond 8,162,000 - { 720,000 7,442,000 740,000
Revenue Bonds

Series 2007

{LCDA Improvements) 15,575,000 - (6350000 _ 14920000 880000
Teotal Revenus Bonds 59877000 - ( 28000000 _ S7.077.000 __ 6290000

Other fong-term liabilities:

Special Assessment Debi—

Paving Cerificates 12,887 - { B,443) 6,444 6,444
Compensated

absences 247 587 216088 ( 190465 232,191 181,344
Other post-smploymaent

benafit obligations 3425941 _ 1490088 _ -~ 4915006 -~

Total ather leng-term

liabilitisy 3686425 1705114 196,908 5,194,631 187,788

Gavernmentat activities

long-term tiabilities 565473425 § 1705114 $( 3346908) 63831631 _ 6842788
Less amounts dug within period of availability—
recorded in accounts payakble 28,512 28,512
Total long-term liabilities,
governmentwide statements 363803119 $. 6814276

{Continued)
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Certificates of indebtedness are comprised of the following issues:

Series 2005, orginal amount $3,400,000 for the purpase of
acquiring, constructing, impraving and equipping the public library
faciities and system; due in annual instaliments of $240,000 o
3415000 through March 1, 2015; interest rate of 3.67%:
repayment of debt is paid from ad valorem texes from the Library
Fund

Revenue bonds consist of the following issues:

Series 2007, original amount $17,325,000 for the purpose of the
acquiring, constructing or improving streets and roads, parks and
recreational faciliies, and economic development faciliies within
the parish, title io which shail be in the public; interest rates
range from 4.00% to 4.50%; due in annual installments of
approximately $1,310,000 through 2027. Repayment of debt will
be from any lawfully available funds.

Sales Tax Refunding Bonds, Series 2010A, orginal amount
$24,830,000 for the purpose of advance refunding the Series
2002 Bonds, thus providing debt reductions and recaplure of the
reserve fund; interest réte 2,73%; due in annual instaliments of
approximately  $1,800,000 to $3,230,000 through 2022
Repayment of debt will be from sales ax revenueas.

Taxable Sales Tax Refunding Bends, Seres 2010B, original
amount $6,310,000 for the purpose of advance refunding the
Series 2002 Bonds, thus providing debt reductions and recapture
of the reserve fund, interest rates range from 1.08% to 1.50%;
due i annual instaiiments of approximately $1,480,000 o
$2,400,000 through 2013. Repayment of debt will be from sales
tax revenues.

Sales Tax Bonds, Series 2010, original amount $5,000,000, for
the purpose of acquiring and consfructing sewerage and water
systemn facilities: interest rale of 1.1875%, due in annual
instalimants of approximately $2,500,000 through 2013,
Repayment of debt will be fram sales {ax revenues.

Serigs ZM0, Build Americe Bonds, original amount $8,162,000
for the acquisition, upgrade, expansion and construction of parish
owned public improvements; interest rate of 5.00%; due in
anhuatl instaliments of approximately $720,000 to $818,000
through 2020. Repayment of debt will be from any lawfully
available funds,

{Continued)
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in-substance Defeasance of Series 2002 Indeblednass

in Decemnber, 2010, the police jury issued $24,830,000 of Sales Tax Refunding Bands, Series 2010A
and $6,310,000 of Taxable Sales Tax Refunding Bonds Series 20108, which was used for advance
refunding of the Beries 2002 indebtedness outstanding principal amount, (Refunded Bonds). The net
proceeds of $30,743 472 (after payment of cost of issuance) and approximately $1,283,552 from the
Refunded Bonds sinking and reserve funds wers placed in special irevecable frust fund established
pursuant to the ierms of an Escrow Deposit Agreement dated Diecember 1, 2010 between the police
jury and the Escrow Holder. The Escrow Holder used the proceeds to purchase a portfalio of
Restricted Escrow Obligations which will be Invested in the obligations of the United States of
America. The Restricted Escrow Obligations will have maturities and interest rates sufficient fo pay
principal and interest payments and redemption premiums on the Refunded Bonds on the date the
payments are due.

The police jury refunded the above indebtedness to obtaln an economic gain (difference between the
present values of debt service payments on the old and new debt} of approximately $1,192,540.

The balance in the escrow was approximately $28,924,125 at December 31, 2091, The balance of
the defeasad indebiedness was approximately $27,306,000 at December 31, 2011. As a rasult, the
Refunded Bonds are considered defeased and the liability has been removed from the financial
statements.

FPayments on long-term debt - certificates of indebtedness and revenue bonds are made from debt
senvice funds. Compensated absences liabifity will be liquidated through various governmental funds.
The liability for compensated absences at December 31, 2011, was allocated to the following funds:
General fund {27%), Highway fund (37%), Library fund (28%), Sewer fund {1%), and Non-Major
Governmental funds {7%). Payments on special assessment debt are made from collections of liens
on essessed property.

Debt service requirements at December 31, 2011, were as follows:

Cerdificate of Indebtedness

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2612 $ 365000 % 50,554 $ 415554
2013 380,000 36,5884 416,864
2014 400,000 22,570 422 570
2015 415000 7615 422 618

§.1.560000 §. 117623 5 1677823

(Continued)
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Revanue Bonds

Fizcal Year Prncipal interest Total
2012 $ 6280000 % 1808005 3% 8,098,(}05
2013 6,480,000 4,684,708 8,164,706
2014 4,051,000 1,551,234 5602234
2015 4 203,000 1,413,578 5616,578
2018 4,385,000 1,270,803 5,625,893

2017=2021 23,133,000 4,036,906 27,169,909
20222026 7,310,000 1,084 440 8,404,440
2027 1,255,000 56 478 1,311,475
$57.077,000 $12916.240 $86.993.240

Special Assessment Debt

Fizscal Year Pringipal Interest Totat
2012 3 6444 5 388 § 6832

Pension Plan

Pian Description. Substantially ail employees of the Bossier Parish Police Jury are members of the
Parochial Employees Retirement System of Louisiana (System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer
defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees. The System is
camposed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All
amployess of the police jury are members of Plan A,

All permanent employees working at least 28 hours per week who are paid wholly or in part from
parish funds are eligible to parficipate in the System. Under Plan A, employees who retire at or after
age B5 with at least 7 years of creditable service, at or after age 60 with at least 10 vears of
creditable service, at or after age 55 with at least 25 years of creditable sarvice, or at any age with at
least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal
to 3% of thelr final-average salary for each year of creditable service, Final-average salary is the
employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest
average. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or
amended by state statute,

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information for the Systemn. That report may be obtained by writing to
the Parochial Employees' Retirement Systern, Post Office Box 14618, Baton Rouge, Louisiana
70898-4619, or by calling (225) 926—1361.

{Continued)
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Funding Policy. State statute requires covered employees to contribute a percentage of their salaries
to the plan. As provided by R.S. 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by an actuarial
valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior
fiscal year. Under Plan A, members are required by state statute to contribute 9.5% of their annual
covered salary and the Bossier Parish Police Jury is required to contribute at an actuarially
determined rate. Contribution rates were 15.75%, 15.75%, and 12.25% of annual cavered payrolt for
2011, 2010, and 2008, respectively. Contributions 1o the System include one-fourth of one percent
(except Orleans and East Baton Rouge Parishes) of the taxes shown to be colleciible by the tax rolls
of each parish. These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on
the salaries of the active members of each plan. The Bossier Parish Police Jury's contributions to the
System under Plan A for the years ending December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, were $1,313,370,
$1,280,641, and $906,840, respectively, equal lo the required contributions for each year.

Other Postempioyment Benefils

Plan Description — The Bossier Parish Police Jury administers a single-employer defined benefit
Other Post Employment Benefit plan (OPEB). The Bossier Parish Police Jury's medical benefits
are provided through a comprehensive medical plan and are made available to employees upon
actual retirement.

Most employees are covered by the Parochial Employees’ Refirement System of Louisiana,
whose retirement efigibility (D.R.Q.P. sntry) provisions are as follows: 30 years of service at any
age; age 55 and 25 years of service; age 60 and 10 years of service; or, age 65 and 7 years of
service. For employees hired on and after January 1, 2007 refirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry)
pravisions are as follows: age 55 and 30 years of service; age 62 and 10 years of service; or, age
67 and 7 years of service. For the few employees not covered by that system, the same
retirement eligibility has been assumed. Complete plan provisions are included in the official plan
documants,

Cental insurance coverage is provided to relirees. The employer pays 80% of the cost of the
dental Insurance for the retiree dependents. We have used the unblended rates provided. Al of
the assumptions used for the valuation of the medical benefits have been used for dental
insurance except for the trend assumption; zero trend was used for dental insurance. The denta)
actuarial costs and liabllities are inciuded in the medical results.

Life insurance coverage is available to refirees and the blended rate {aclive and retired) is
approximately $0.22 per $1,000 of insurance. The employes pays 20% of the "cost® of the refires.
life insurance, but it is based on the blended rate. Since GASB 45 requires the use of "unblended"
rates, we have used the 94GAR mortalily table described below to "unblend” the rates so as to
reproduce the composite blended rate overall as the rate structure to calculate the actuarial
valuation results for life insurance. All of the assumptions used for the valuation of the medical
benefils have been used except for the trend assumption; zero rend was used for life insurance.
Reliree insurance coverage amounts are reduced to a flat $9,000, although certain current
retirees have different amounts from prior schedules.

Contribution Rates — Employees do not contribute to their post employment benefits costs until
they become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The plan provisions and contribution
rates are contained in the official plan documents.

{Continued)
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Fund Policy ~ Until 2008, the Bossier Parish Police Jury recognized the cost of providing post-
employment medicaf and life insurance benefits {the Bossier Parish Police Jury's portion: of the
retiree medical and life insurance benefit premiums) as an expense when the benefit premiums
were due and thus financed the cost of the post-empioyment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis,
In 2011 and 2010, the police jury's portion of medical and life insurance funding cost for retired
employees totaled $252,013 and $298,260, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Bessier Parish Police Jury implemented Government Accounting
Standards Board Statement Number 45, Accounfing and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Post employment Bensfits Other than Pensions {GASB 48). This amount was applied toward the
Net OPER Benefit Obligation as shown in the following table.

Annual Required Contribution — The Bossier Parish Police Jury's Annual Required Contribution
(ARC) is an amount actuarially determined in ascordance with GASB 45. The ARG is the sum of
the Normal Cost plus the contribution to amoriize the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability
(UAAL). A level doliar, open amortization period of 30 years {the maximum amortization period
allowed by GASB 43/45) has been used for the post-employment benefits. The actuarlatly
computed ARC is as foliows:

2011 __as10_
Normal cost 3 036,484 3 900,465
30-year UAL amortization amount 812,915 877,803
Annual required contribution (ARC) 3 1,845 389 3 1,778,268

Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation (Asset) — The table below shows the Bossier Parish
Police Jury's Net Other Post-empioyment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation for fiscal years ending
December 31:

2011 2010
Beginning Net OPEB Qbligation $ 3425942 % 1,881,260
Annual required contribution . 1,849,389 1,778,268
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 137,038 79,250
ARC Adjustment (198,123 {114,576}
OPEB Cost 1,788,314 1,742 942
Contribution - -
Current year retiree premium {252.013) £298,260)
Change in Net OPEB Ohligation 1,480,054 1,444,682
Ending Net OPEB Obligation 3 4915908 & 3425942

The following table shows the Bossler Parish Police Jury's annual post employment banefits
{PEB} cost, percentage of the cost contributed, and the net unfunded pest employment benefits
{PEB) liability for |ast year and this year:

{Continued)
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(Continued)
Percentage of Net OPEB
Annual OPEB Annual Cost Iiability
Fiscal Year Ended Cost Contributed {Asset}
December 31, 2011 $1,788,314 16.68% $4,9159986
Decembar 31, 2010 $ 1,742,942 17.11% $ 3,425,942

Funded Status and Funding Progress - In 2011 and 2010, the Bossier Parish Police Jury made
no contributions to its post employment benefits plan. The pian Is not funded, has no assets, and
hence has a funded ratio of zero. Based on the January 1, 2010 actuarial valuation, the most
recent valuation, the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) at the end of the year December 31, 2011
was $16,.417,730 which is defined as that portion, as determined by a particular actuarial cost
method {the Bossier Parish Pofice Jury uses the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method), of the
actuarial present value of post employment plan benefits and expenses which is not provided by
normal cost.

2011 2010
Actuarial Accrued Liability {AAL) $ 18417,73C § 15,178,114
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets (AVF) - -
Unfunded Act. Accruad Liabllity {UAAL} 3 16417730 & 15,179,114
Funded Ratio {AVP/AAL) 0.00% 0.00%
Covered Payroll {active plan members) $ 7,050,681 § 7,397,827
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroil 232.85% 205.19%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions — Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. The
actuarial valuation for post employment benefits includes estimates and assumptions regarding
(1) turnover rate; (2) retirement rate; {3} health care cost trend rate; (4) mortaiily rate; (5) discount
rate (investment return assumption); and (8) the period to which the costs apply {past, current, or
future years of Service by smployees). Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future,

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the Bossier Parish Police Jury and its employee plan
members) at the time of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the Bossier
Parish Police Jury and its plan members fo that point. The projection of benefits for financial
reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual
funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the Bossier Parish Police Jury and plan
members in the future. Consistent with the long-term perspective of actuarial calcuiations, the
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-
term volatiiity in actuarial Habilities and the actuarial valus of assets,

{Continued}
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Actuarial Cost Method — The ARC is defermined using the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method. The
employer partion of the cost for retiree medical care in each future year is determined by projecting
the current cost levels using the healthcare cost trend rate and discounting this projected amount to
ihe valuation date using the other described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including the
investment return assumption (discount rate), mortality and tumover,

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets — There are not any plan assets. It is anticipated that in future
valuations, should funding take place, a smoothed market value consistent with Actuarial Standards
Board ASOP 6, as provided in paragraph number 125 of GASB Statement 45.

Turnover Rate - An age-related tumover scale based on actual experience has been used. The
rates, when applied to the active employee census, produce a composite average annual tumover
of approximately 5%.

Post employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements — Based on past experience, it has
been assumed that entittement to benefits will commence three years after eligibility to enter the
D.R.O.P. Medical benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement. Most employees are
covered by the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana, whose retirement eligibility
(D.R.O.P. entry) provisions are as follows: 30 years of service at any age; age §5 and 2§ years of
service; age 60 and 10 years of service; or, age 65 and 7 years of service. For employees hired on
and after January 1, 2007 retirement sligibility (D.R.Q.P. entry) provisions are as follows: age 55
and 30 years of service; age 82 and 10 years of service; or, age 87 and 7 years of service.
Entitterment to benefits continue through Medicare to death.

investment Return Assumption (Discount Raie) - GASB Statement 45 states that the
investment return assumption should be the estimated long-term investment yield on the
investments that are expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits (that is, for a plan
which is funded). Based on the assumption that the ARC will net be funded, a 4% annual
investment return has been used in this valuation.

Health Care Cost Trend Rate — The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on
projections perfarmed by the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Sarvices
as published in National Health Care Expenditures Projections: 2003 to 2013, Table 3. National
Health Expenditures, Aggregate and per Capita Amounts, Percent Distribution and Average Annual
Percent Change by Source of Funds: Selected Calendar Years 1890-2013, released in January,
2004 by the Health Care Financing Administration (www.cms.hhs.gov). "State and Local" rates for
2008 through 2013 from this report were used, with rates beyond 2013 graduated down to an
ultimate annuai rate of 5.0% for 2016 and later.

Mortality Rate - The 1894 Group Annuity Reserving {S4GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on a
fixed blend of 50% of the unloaded male mortafity rate and 50% of the unloaded female mortality
rates, was used. This iz a published mortality table which was designed fo be used in determining
the value of accrued benedfits in defined bensfit pension plans.

Method of Determining Value of Benefits — The "value of benefits” has been assumed 1o be the
portion of the premium after retirement date expected to be paid by the employer for each retiree and
has been used as the basis for calculating the acluarial present value of OPEB benefits o be paid.

{Continued)
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The employer pays 80% of the cost of the medical insurance for the retirees and dependents. The
rales provided applicable before age 65 are "blended” rates. Since GASB 45 mandates that
"nblended" rates be used, we have estimated the "unblended” rates for iwo broad groups: active and
retired before Medicare eligibility. ¥ has been assumed that the retiree rate before Medicare eligibility is
130% of the blended rate.

inflation Rate - Inciudad in both the investment Return Assumption and the Heaithcare Cost Trend
rates above is an implicit inflation assumption of 2.50% annually,

Projected Salary Increases - This assumption is not applicable since neither the benefit struciure
nor the valuation methodology involves salary,

Post-retirement Benefit Increases - The plan benefit provisions in effect for retirees as of the
vaiuation date have been used and it has been assumed far valuation purposes that there will not
be any changes in {he future,

Below is a summary of OPEB cost and contributions for the last three fiscal calendar years.

OPEB Costs and Contributions

FY 2009 Fy 2010 FY 2011

OPEB Cost R} 1,236,761 § 4,742 842 1,788,314
Contribution - - -
Retiree pramium 255,042 298,260 252013

Total contribution and premium 255 042 298,260 262,013
Change in net OPEB obligation 981,719 1,444,682 1,490,054
Net OPEB obligation at year-end 5 1981260 % 3,425,942 4915998
% of confribution to cost 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
% of sontribution plus premium to cost 20.62% 17.11% 18.68%

(Continued)
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Crimiral Court Fund

R.S. 15:571.11 requires that ene-half of any balance remaining in the criminal court fund at year—end
be transferred to the parish General Fund. The foliowing details the amount due at Decembar 31,
2011

Balance due at January 1, 2011 $ 30,348

Amount due for 2011 40815

Total 71,164

Remitted during 2011 { _.30.349)

Balance due ai December 31, 2011 $ 40815
Commitments

Waterworks ! Sewerage District

The Consolidated Waterworks / Sewerage District No. 1 (District} is planning certain water and
sewer projects and acquisitions for water / sewer infrastructure improvements within Bossier
parish. The estimated cost of those improvements are approximately $45,000,000. Funding for
the improvements is expected to be provided by a loan from the State of Louisiana, Department of
environmental Quality for $17,750,000; issuance of revenue bonds through the Louisiana Local
Government Authority for $11,835,000; and State of Louisiana capital outlay funds totaling
approximately $15,500,000.

Activity subsequent to December 31, 2011 on the improvements is as follows:

In May 2012, the policy jury issued $11,835,000 of revenue bonds series 2012, for the
purpose of acquisition, upgrade, expansion, construction and equipping of Parish owned
public improvements, any other additions, acquisitions, repairs and / or expansions needed
to maintain Parish owned works of public improvement.

In March 2012, the Consolidated Waterworks / Sewerage District No. 1 issued 347,750,000
of utilites revenue honds, series 2012, for the purpose of improvements to the sewerage
portion of the combined utilitiss system.

As of December 31, 2011, the police jury has commitments for signed construction,
engineering, and other contracts in relation to the District of approximately $1,175,913. As
of December 31, 2011, approximately $211,330 had been incurred on those contracts, and
the balance remaining in those contracts was approximately $984,583, which will be incurred
subseguant to December 31, 2011,

Other Commitments

As of December 31, 2011, the police jury has commibments for signed construction, engineering,
and other contracts of approximately $22,884,991. As of December 31, 2011, approximately
$10,101,955 had been incurred on those contracts, and the balance remalning in those coniracts
was approximately $12,783,038, which wlll be incurred subsequent to December 31, 2011.

{Continued}
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Donated Infrastructure

included in operating grants and confributions in the Statement of Activities is $12,203474 of
donated infrastructure. The donations are the result of the Bossier Parish Police Jury's acceptance
of subdivisions into the jury's road maintenance system.

Litigation and Claims

At December 31, 2014, the police jury is involved in numerous lawsuits. In the opinion of lagal
counsel for the police jury, the potential loss on all claims and lawsuits will not be significant to the
police jury's financial statements.

Economi: Dependency

The foliowing are the principal taxpayers for the parish and their 2011 assessed valuation.

201 Percent of

Assessed Total Assessed

Valuation Valuation
Petrohawk Operating $ 30,204,070 2.95%
Horseshoe Entertainment 23,864,830 2.33%
KCS Resoqurces, LLC 21,007,310 2.05%
J-W Operating 18,888,650 1.94%
Halliburton Energy 14,782,160 1.44%
Midcontinent Express 14,483,230 1.42%
Gulf Crogsing Fipsling 12,493,760 1.22%
Southwestern Eleclric 11,977,880 1.17%
Louisiang Riverboat 11,817,100 1.14%
City of Shreveport 9,416,080 .82%

$169.744970 __1658% .
The police jury recaived gaming revenues of $4,152,730 from local gaming astablishments.
Advance to Consolidated Waterworks / Sewerage District No. 1

The police jury provided proceeds of revenue bond borrowings not o exceed 35,000,000 fo the
Consolidated Waterworks / Sewerage District No. 1 (District) for the purpose of financing the
purchase of existing water and sewerage systers within the Distict and other costs of
establishment of the system. This amangement was formalized through a resolution between the
police jury and the District in order to provide interim financing sufficient to purchase existing systems
as needed by the District. it is the intent for the District to repay the advance from the police jury by
obtaining funding through issuance of new debt in the future. The amount advanced by the police
jury as of Decemnber 31, 2011, was approximately $4,381,552. This amount is shown in the
accompanying fund financial stafements as advance to waterworks / sewerage district and advance
from police jury, and is shown as intemal balances on the accompanying government-wide financial
statements,

(Cantinued)
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The police juity purchases commercial insurance to provide workers compensation coverage and general liability and property
insurance. There werg no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the previcus year.

{20) Fund Balance Classifications

The constraints on fund balances as listed in aggregate in the Statament of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balance are detailed accarding to balance dlassification and fund, as follows:

Major
Capital
Projects
Major Spacial Revenus Funds Funds
Ciher
Genaral Capital BABS Govemmental
Fund Highway Library improvements  LCDA Funds Total
Fund balances:
Nonspendabls $ % $ $ L] 5 4381552 % 4,3815852
Rastricted
Public works 12,430,267 1,897,082 14,427,338
Cubure and recreation 13,461,452 50,808 13,532,361
Operations and maintenance 4 553832 4,559,932
Caplial projects 8,071,297 85,949 8,157,246
Health and safety 3,710,656 3,710,856
Public safely 2,708,006 2,708,006
Debt service 4,385 076 4,385 076
Economic development 735,972 735,972
Committed:
Sewer operations 332,792 332,762
Juvenile detention 3,097 3,007
Public works 4,433,388 100,158 4,533,548
Cultare and recreztion g7 437 34,686 132,123
Operations and maintenance 130,631 130,531
Capital projects 1,338,541 1,338,541
Health and safely 10,111 10,111
Public safety 691,066 691,066
Judiciai 40,815 40,815
Economic development 86,603 89,603
Unassighed 3,098,670 3,008,670
Total fund balances 33435459 $16,8536468 113,548,888 $4.690463 $B8,071,297 $20,380,383 $67.000,137

{21} Subsequent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through June 26, 2012, the date the financial slatements were svaileble to be issued,
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Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes
Sales tax
Licenses and permits
intergovernmental revenues

Fees, charges, and commissions for services

Use of money and property
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expanditures:
Current:
General government:
Legislative
Judicial
Elections
Finance and administrative
Othar
Public safety
Health and welfare
Cultisre and recreation
Capital projects
Economic development
Total expenditures

Excess (daficiency) of revenues
over expanditures

COther financing seurces {uses):
Operating transférs in
Operating fransfers out

Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources ovar expenditures and other uses

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balancas at end of year

Bosster Parish Policy Jury
Benten, Louisiana
Required Suppiementary information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
General Furd
Eor the Year Ended Dacember 31, 2011

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgetad Amouints Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgstary Basis) __ {Negative)
$§ 1845839 $ 1703700 $ 1703702 3% 2
1,700,000 1,700,000 1,840,830 140,830
578,800 694,800 650,060 {44,740y
1,542,034 568,200 572,238 {25,962}
175,000 165,000 79,398 (85,602)
8,700 8,200 9,367 167
293,985 387.029 323,880 {63,040}
5,942 468 5257929 5,179,584 (78,345}
347,850 336,850 332,822 3,628
833,150 632,423 575,728 56,6899
188,050 250,650 231,585 18,005
1,962,800 1,766,600 1,581,944 174,656
226 642 233,542 235,383 {1.821)
1,958,577 2,008,707 2147418 {138,712)
148,840 164,340 164.475 (135}
105,000 125,000 148,348 (21,348)
1.500 1,500 1.500
188,870 183,870 155,103 43,767
5,772,879 5718184 5,580,853 137,331
169,489 {460,255} (401,269) 58,986
106,348 105,348
{293,050) (500,000) (500.000)
(293,050 (500.000) (304,651) 105,348
{123.561} {080,255} {795,920) 164,335
1,660,580 1,446,719 1,436,811 {16,808}
$§ 1437020 § 480484 3 639,991 § 153,527

Sae accompanying note to the required supplementary schedule,
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Bossler Parish Policy Jury

Benton, Louisiana

Reguired Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Highway Pund

For the Year Ended Dacember 31, 2011

Variance with
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Revenues: Qriginal Finat {Budgetary Basis}  (Negaftive)
Ad valorem taxes $ 1,658,893 1,727000 % 1,727,021 21
Sales tax 8,900,000 9,000,000 8,439,500 439,500
License and peimits 150,000 288,000 280 848 4,846
Intergovemmental revenues 2,955,000 3,801,815 3,726,091 124,276
Fines and forfaitures 150,000 240,000 242 878 2,878
Use of money and property 6,000 7.800 7,848 48
Other revenues 276,000 330,100 240,355 (88,745)
Tatal revenues 14,085,983 15,192,715 16,674,538 481,824
Expenditures:
Currant:
General government
Finance and administrative 168,309 185,100 130,684 68,416
Public works 23,547,540 21,951,390 20,720,278 1,231,111
Total expenditures 23,743,848 22,150,490 20,850,983 1,289,627
Excess {deficiency) of revenuas
over expenditures (9,647 856) (8,857,775} (5,176,424) 1,781,351
Cther financing sources {uses):
Operating transfers in 800,000 900,416 800,416
Operating transfers out (1,100,0C0) (1,279,000} £179,000)
Total other financing sources (uses 800,000 (198,584 {378,584) {173,000}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources gver expenditures and other uses (8,847 888) (7,157,359) {5,555,008) 1,602,351
Fund batances at beginning of year 14,368,911 20,367,620 20,375,587 71.977
Fund balances at end of year $ 5521,055 $ 13210261 § 14820689 § 1,610,328

See accompanying note o the required supplementary schedule,
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Bossier Parish Policy Jury
Bention, Louisiana

Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

Library Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Revenues.
Ad valorem taxes
intergovermnmental revenues
Fees, charges, and commissions
for services
Fines and forfaitures
Use of money and property
Other revenues
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current
General government,
Finance and administrative
Culture and recreation
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over sxpenditures

COther financing sources {uses):
Qperating transfers out

Total other financing sources {uses)

Excess (deficiency} of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses

Fund batances at beginning of year

Fung balances af end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Original Final (Budgetary Basis)  {Negative)
5 56800000 § 6006000 § 6491451 § 485,451
138,000 138,000 155,942 19,942
27.000 40,000 39,526 (474)
32,000 40,000 40,210 210
4,000 4,000 4181 161
28,000 28,500 13,539 {14,961}
5,826,000 8,254,500 6,744,829 490,328
190,000 204,000 203,388 631
5,222,000 5,634,400 4,341,352 1,293,048
5,412,000 5,838,400 4,544,721 1,283,678
414,000 416,100 2,200,108 1,784,008
(414,000) (414,000 {£14,000)
{414,000) {414,000) (414,000}
2100 1,786,108 1,784,008
5,801,242 6,431,282 6,431,120 (162}
g 5,801,342 $ 6433382 § 8217208 § 1,783.846

See accompanying note to the required supplementary schedule.
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Bossier Parish Policy Jury
Banton, Louisiana
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Capital Improvements
For the Year Ended Decermnber 31, 2011

Variance with

Finai Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Amounts Positive
Revenues: Qriginal Final (Budgetary Basis) {Negative}
Sales taxes § 5000000 % 9000000 F 8,014,543 § 14,543
Use of maney and property 800 810 10
Other revenues 148,721 148,721
Total revenues 9,000,000 2,150,521 9,165,074 14,553
Expendituras:
Current:
General government.
Qther administration 2,048,470 2,448,247 2,158,240 290,007
Public works 143,300 143,300 138,081 5219
Health and welfare 142,500 143,225 118,839 24,288
Economic developrnent 80,000 58,613 1,387
Total expenditures 3,235,270 2,794,772 2,473,873 320,892
Excess {deficiency) of fevenues
over expenditures 5,764,730 5,355,749 6,881,201 335,452
Other financing sources (uses)
Operating transfers out {5,827,500) - (6,657,500) {6,826 000) 31,500
Total other financing sourges (uses) {5,827 ,500) {6,657.500) (8,626,000} 31,500
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other
sources over expenditures and other uses {62, 770) {301,751} 65,201 366,852

Fund balances at beginning of year 3423313 3,700,709 3,709,708

Fund balances at end of year $ 3407958 % 3774910 § 366,952

$ 3,360,543

See accompanying note o the required supplementary schedule.
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Banton, Louisiana
Note 1o Required Supplernentary Information
December 31, 2011

Budget comparison statements included in the accompanying financial statements include the
original adopted budgets and all subsequent amendments. For GAAP basis financlal reporting, the
General fund includes activities of the Juvenile Detention and Sewer Operation funds, as those funds

de not meet the criteria to be classified as special revenug funds.

The following schedute reconciles excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources over
expenditures and other uses on the statement of revenues, expendiures and changes in fund
batances {budget basis) with the amounts shawn on the statement of revenues, expenditures and

changes in fund balances (GAAP basis):

General Highway Library Capital
Fund Fund Fungd improvements

Excess {deficiency) of
revenues and other
SOUrCas pvear
expenditures and

other uses {(budget
basis) $( 795820) $( 5555008 $ 178618 § 65,201

Adjustments:
Revenue acoruals —net 801,688 { 308,791 { 52,333) { 93463}

Expenditures acoruals —
nat 10,178 { 187387} { 141.778) 33,314

Revenues, iransfers, and
other financings sources:
Juvenile Detention 938,518
Sewer operations 437,075

Expenditures, transfers, and
Other financing uses:
Juvenile Detention (938,326}
Sewer Operation (104,283}

Excess (deficlency) of
revenues and other
SOUrces over
expenditures and
other uses {GAAP
basis) $ 249020 §( 6052186 §._1601806 § 5082
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Schedule of Funding Progress for Retiree Health, Dantal, and Life Plans
For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

UAAL as a
Actuartal Actuanal Actuarial Percentage of
Valuation Value of  Accrued Liabilty Unfunded ALL Funded Covered Covered
Date Assels {AAL) {UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroli
1112010 0 % 15179114 § 15,179,114 0 $ 7,397,527 205%
1M/2008 0 $ 10,839,178 $ 10,839,178 0 % 5576518 194%
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Banton, Louisiana
Supptemental Information Schedules —
Combining Schedules for Non-Major Funds
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Health Unit Fund

The Health Unit Fund accounts for the maintenance and operation of the parish health unit. Financing is
provided by a special parish-wide ad valorem tax and interest earmings.

L.aw Enforcemant Fund

Act 582 of 2004 increased the witness fee paid to off-duty law enforcement officers In criminai cases from
$26 per day per case to $50 per day per case, up to @ maximum of $150 per day. The act stipulated that
no patish would be required to appropriate general func meney for payment of these fees, and provided
for a special fund to be established for payment. The 26" Judicial Disirict Court judges are taxing
defendants o pay witness fees associated with their cases.

Criminal Gourt Fund

The Crimina! Court Fund was created by Section 571.11 of Titie 15 of the Louisiana Revised Statutes of
1950, which provides that fines and forfeitures imposed by district courts and district attornsy conviction fees
in criminal cases be ransferred to the parish treasurer and deposited in a special eriminal court fund account
to be used for the expenses of the criminal court of the parish, Expenditures are made from the fund on
motion of the district attorney and approval of the district judge. The statute also requires that one-half of the
surplus (fund balance) remaining in the fund at December 31 of each year be transferred to the parish
General Fund.

Section 8 Housing Fund

The Section 8 Fund accounts for the operation of a Section & Housing Subsidy Program funded by the
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. The program provides housing assiglance
payments to participating owners on behalf of eligible tenants to provide decent, safe and sanitary housing for
low-income familles at rents they can afford. Housing assistance payments are used to make up the
difference between the approved rent due lo the owner for the dwelling unit and the occupant family's

required contribution toward the rent.

Corractional Facilities Fund

The Cixrectional Faciiies Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of correctiona! facilties in
Bossier Parish, including the furnishing of transportation and madica) care for prisoners. Financing is
provided by ad valoram tax revenue.

Highway Certificates of Indebtedness Sinking Fund

The Highway Certificates of Indebtedness Sinking Fund is used 1o account for the accumulation of resources
for and the repayment of debt on certificates of indebtedness issued for purpasas of rural road construction.

Library Certificates of Indebtedness Sinking Fund
The Library Certificates of Indebtedness Sinking Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources

for and the repayment of debt on certificates of indebtedness issued for purposes of cunstruction of a library
history center.

(Continued)
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Beriton, Louisiana
Supplemental information Schedules -
Combining Schedules for Non-Major Funds
As of and for the Year Ended Decernber 31, 2011
{Continued)

Sales Tax Bonds Sinking Fund

The Sales Tax Bonds Sinking Fund is used fo account for the accumulation of resources for and the
repayment of debt on cerificates of indebtedness issued for purposes of courthouse improvemants/
renovations and construction of a new maximum security jail,

LCDA Sinking Fund

The LCDA Sinking Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the repayment of debt
on revenue bonds issued for purposes of acquiring, constructing or impraving streets and roads, parks and
recreational facilities, and economic development faciliies within the parish, title to which shall be in the
public.

Valerie Lane Debt Service Fund

The Valerie Lane Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the
repayment of debt on paving certificates issued for purposes of improvements to Valerie Lane in Bossler
Parish.

General Capital Projects

The General Capital Projects Fund accounts for boarding fee funds received from thiee of the riverboats in
Bossier Parish as well as the proceeds from taxes levied on slot machine procaeds. This money is to be
utitized far various Capital Projects

indusirial Park Construction Fund

The Industrial Park Construction Fund accounts for financial resources used to acquire and construct
facifities at the industrial park.

Airline Drive Construction Fund

The Aifline Drive Construction Fund was creatad to account for the construction/improvement of Alrline Drive
in Bosster Parish.

Parks and Recreation Fund

The Parks and Recreation Fund was created to account for funds received from mineral leases o be used
for the improvement of various parks and recreation facilities in Bessier Pansh.

Cyber Command Fund

The Cyber Command Fund is used o account for the construction of the new Cyber Innovation Center.
LCDA Public Improvements

The LCDA Public Improvement Fund accounts for the acquiring, constructing or impraving streets and reads,
parks and recreationat facilities, and economic development facilities within the parish, title to which shall ba

in the public.
{Continued)
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Bossier Parish Polica Jury
Banton, Lovisiana
Suppiemental Information Schedutes —
Combining Scheduies for Non-Major Funds
As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2011
{Continued)

Sewarage Construction

The Sewer Construction Fund accounts for constructing and acquiring improvements and extensions o the
waterworks and sewerage system.

Rural Development Grant Fund

The Rural Development Grant fund is used to account for various grants received from the State of
Louisiana, Office of Rural Development, for various capital projects.

LCDBG Fund

The LCDBG Fund is used to account for a Louisiana Community Development Block Grant obtained from
the State of Lowisiana Division of Administration for the purpose of fire protection.
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Bossigr Panigh Folice Jury
Benton, Lovisiana
Combining Schadule of Revenuas, Expenditures, sd Changes in Fond Balantes
For the Year Endea December 31, 2011

Highway Library
Certificates of  Gertlficales of
Indebledness indabtednass
Law Ceiminat Section 8 Comections Sinking Sinking
Health Unit Enforcement Courd Houslng Fatitities Fund Fund
Revenuss:
Ad valorem laxes 5 TO501t § § 3 3 1597184 % §
Intergovermmental revenues 52,559 3,082.072 101,512
Fees, charges and commissions
for service 7,548 284,750 831,713
Fines and forfaitures 1,076,023
invastment earsings g41 52 843 1,438 133 38
Mizcellansous 7,916
Total revenues 758,111 7,681 1,360,733 3992 915 2,188,741 133 3G
Expendiuras:
Curren:
Zoning and plannping
Judicial 4,609,181
Fingnce ang administralive 22,888 18,695 482923
Qther 64,748
Public safely 156973 7,150 221480
Pubiic works
Health angd welfare 307 831 23928,074
Cuiture and recreation
Economic development
Capital Oullay 288,272
Debt serdice:
Priacipal cetirement 720,000 350,000
interast and other charges 351,483 653,876
Total expenditures 459 489 1.750 1,816,876 3,410,387 2,578,949 1,101,493 413,675
Excess {daficency) of ravenves
ovar axpenditures 268,622 {146} 1459.033) 541,918 {368,208 {1,1081.380) {413,636}
Other financing sources (uses)
Sate of Capital ltems
Transfess in 9,472 500,008 840,800 1,104,000 414,000
Transfass out {33.441)
“Total other financing sources 9,472 486,559 £00,000 1,104,000 414 000
Excess (deficiency) of reysnues
and other sources pver expenditures 279,084 (1483 10,458 581,818 210,792 2,840 364
Furd batancae at beginaing of yaar 2.049.350 210,490 36,348 810,605 2,977,830 5,304
Fund balances a1 and of year 5 2328444 3 210341 & 40815 § 1302823 § 3188731 & 2640 8 5,758
{Continuad)
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benlon, Louigiana
Combining Schedule of Revenues; Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended Dacember 31, 2011

{Contirued}
LCDA fenearai Aidine
Sakes Tax inking Valerie Long Capital Industrial Drive Parks &
Bond Sinking Fund Dabt Service Prolects Park Construction Recreatlon
Revanues:
Ad valorem laxes $ H] $ $ % %
Intergovetnmental revenuas 84 498
Eeps, charges and commissions .
for service 2,860,841
Fines and forfeitures
irrvestment earmings 642 3 386 202 158 69
Misceilaneous 2,780 14 400 34 528
Total revenues 842 2,783 2,748,734 14,802 159 34,688
Expendifures:
Current;
Zowing and planping 78,832
Judicial
Finance and administrative
Ofther
Puhlic safely
Frublic works 141,409 48,856
Healh and wailare 71,422
Culture and recraation 37,468 211,170
Ecanomic development 1,180,262 95,384
Capital Qutiay 437,178 120,731
Debt service:
Pringipal retirement 1,425,000 555,000 5,443
Interest and other charges 472,689 657,877 773
Total expenditures 1,897,669 1,312,877 7218 1,918,821 217,175 48,850 214170
Excess {deficiency) of ravanues
over expenditures (1.897,027) (1312877} {4,433} 829,103 (202,573} {48,891} (176.484)
Other financing sources (uses)
Sale of Caplial lems 75.000
Transfers in 4,448,000 1,312,778 15,208 160,000 169,000
Transfers gut {1,312,775) {100,000}
Total other financing sources 4,448,000 1,312,776 19,285 11,212,775} 758,060 100,000 {100,008)
Excass (deflciency) of revenuss
ang other sowrces over expenditures 2,545,973 {104) 14,772 {383 .672) (127,573 51,308 (216,484}
Fund balances at baginning of year 1,708,177 109,408 (2.651) 1722213 553,148 505,055 392,079
Fund balanses st and of year $ 4,255,150 § 108,307 % 12221 5 1338541 § 825575 § 558364 & 115,583
{Continued)
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Bossier Pasish Polica Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Gomblring Schedule of Revenves, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Yesr Ended Decembar 31, 2011

{Cantinuad)
LCDA Rural Tolat Other
Cyher Public Sewer Development Govermnmental
Command improvements  Conslruction Grants LCDBG Funds
Revenuas:
Ad valorem taxes E] 8 § $ H 3 2703075
intergovermnmentat revenues 340,953 16,813 133,210 4721817
Fees, chargas snd commissions
fe? service 3034 8683
Fings and forfellures 1,076,023
Investmeant sarnings 563 1,332 8090
Miscalanaous 59,722
Total revenuas 483 342,285 16,813 133,218 11,601,880
Expenditiuras:
Current: ,

Zoning and planning 78,842
Judicial 1,800,181
Finance and ag¢ministrative 522.503
Gther 64,748

Public safety 2.381,854
Bublic works 363,258 16,813 133.21¢ 673,541
Health andg welfare 3,307,127
Culture and recroation 248,638
Econamic davatopment 5,488 1,282,134
Gapital Outlay 857.241
Debt sarvice:
Principal ratiremant 3,156,443
{nteresi and other charges 1,576,487
Total expenditures 5,488 383,258 16,813 133,210 15,549 8577
Excess (deficisncy) of revenues
over expendiures {5,488 5683 {20,874} {4,347,687)
Other financing sources {(uses)
Sale of Capital lterns 75,000
Transfers in 10,000 B 615453
Transiers ot {100,418) {412,8¢0) {1,558,232)
Total other financing sources (100,416) {412.660) 14,000 6,731,221
£xcess (deliciency) of revenues
and othar sources over expandilures {5,488} {99,753) (433,574} 10,000 2,385,534
Fund balances al beginning of yesr 5488 1,640,630 4,901,075 £10,000) 18,006 .84%
Fund balances af end ot year § 31540877 & 448750t % 5 § 20,350,383
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Supplemental Information Schedule -
Schedule of Compensation Paid Police Jurors
December 31, 2011

Amount

W. Wayne Mammack 3 14,350
Winfred Johnston 14,400
Jerome L. Darby 14,150
Rick L. Avery 14,400
Brad Cummings 14,400
Jimmy Cochran, President 14,400
Bill Altimus 14,350
Glenn Benton 14,400
Wanda Bennett 14,400
Barry Sutler 14,350
Paul Plummer 14,400
Hank Meachum 14,400

Total 3 172400

The schedule of compensation paid o police jurors is presented in compliance with House Concurrent
Rasolution No. 54 of the 1979 Session of the Louisiana Legistature. Compensation of the police jurors is
included in the legislative expenditures of the General Fund. In accordance with Louisiana Revised Stature
33:1233, the police jury has elected the monthiy payment method of compensation.
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COOK & MOREHART

Certified Public Accountanss
1215 HAWN AVENUE » SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA T1107 « P.O. BOX 78240 » SHREVEPORT, LOUISTANA THI37-8248

TEAVIS H MOREHART, TPA TELEPHONE (313) 112-5415 FAX (318) 3225441
A EDWARD 8ALL, CBA

VICKIE D. CASE. CPA
MEVEER

AMERICAN INSTITUTE
STLART 1. REEKS, CPA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

SOCIETY OF LOUISIANA
CERTIFRD PHALIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report on Internal Control Over Financial and on Compliance

And Other Matiers Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying primary government financial statements of the governmental activities,
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bossier Parish
Police Jury, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011, and have issued our report thereon dated
June 28, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the stendards applicable o finencial audits contained in Govemment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United States.

Intarnal Control Quer Finanelal Reporting

Management of the Bossier Parish Police Jury Is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal controt aver financial reporting. In planning and perfarming our audit, we considered Bossier Parish
Police Jury's intemal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures far the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opirion oh the effectiveness of the Bossier Parish Police Jury's intemal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion of the effectiveness of the Bossier Parish Police Jury's internal
over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of & control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of parforming their assigned functions, fo prevent or detect and correct
misstataments on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibilty that a material misstatement of the entity's financial
statements will nat be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Qur consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identity any
deficiencies in internat control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Bossier Parish Police Jury's financial statements
are free of material misstaternent, we performed tests of iis compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agresments, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the determination of financial staterent amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance
with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such ar opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance of other matters that are required 1o be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
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This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and others within the organization
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

QQA»%W

Cook & Morghart
Cartified Public Accountants
June 26, 2012
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COUOK & MOREHART

Certified Public Accountants
1215 HAWN AVENUE » SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA TLI07 - P.0. BOX 74240 - SHREVEPORT, LOUISIANA 71137-8240

TRAYIS H MOREHART, TPA TELEPHONE {318 122-5415 FAX (318) 213-5441
A EOWARD BALL, CFA
VICKIE D CASE, CBA
MEMBER
AMBRICAM INSTITUTE
STUART L REEKS, CPA CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

SOCIETY OF LOULSIANA
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report on Compliance With Requirements That Could Have & Direct and
Material Effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control

Qver Compliance In Accordance with OMB Cirgutar A-133

Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana

Compliance

Wa have audited the compliance of Bossier Parish Pulice Jury with the types of compliance requirements
described in the LS. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that
could have 2 direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended Decamber
31, 2011. Bossier Parish Police Jury's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's
rasults section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cosis. Comgpliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is
the responsibility of Bossier Parish Police Jury's management. Qur responsibility s to express an opinion on
Bossier Parish Police Jury's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted In the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Complrofler General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to abave that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
cccurred. An auditincludes exantining, on test basis, evidence about Bossier Parish Police Jury's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not
provide a legal determination on Bossier Parish Police Jury's compliance with those requirements.

in our opinion, Bossier Parish Palice Jury complied, in all material respects, with the requirements refarred to
abave that could have a direct and material efflect on each of its major federal pragrams for the year ended
Decernber 31, 2011,

internal Controf Over Compliance

Management of Bossier Parish Police Jury is responsibie for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the reuirements of laws, regulations, contracis, and grants applicabie to faderal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Bossier Parish Police Jury's internal control
over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliarice and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bossler Parish Police
Jury's internal control over compliance.

87



A deficiency in intemal controi exists when the design or operation of a control aver compliance does not
allow managemant or amployees, in the nomnal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and comect, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on & timely
basis. A malerial weakness in internal confrol over compiiance is a deficiency, or combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to idantify all deficiencies in Internal controt over compliance
that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internat control over compliance that we consider to be rmaterial weaknesses. as defined
above.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and others within the organization
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Cook & Morehart
Certified Public Accountants
June 28, 2012
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Bossier Parish Police Jury
Benton, Louisiana
Summary Schadule of Prior Audit Findings
December 31, 2011

There were no findings related to federal awards programs it the prior year audit for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Schedule of Finding and Questioned Costs
December 31, 2011

A. Summary of Audit Results

1.

The auditors report exprasses an ungualified opinion on the primary govermment's governmental
activities, business-type activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information of
Bossier Parish Police Jury, and an adverse opinion on the aggregate discretely presented
component units of the Bossler Parish Police Jury, due to the discretely presenied component units
not being included in the financial statements.

. No significant deficiercies are reported in the Report on Compliance and on Internal Contral Over

Financial Reporting Based on an Audil of Financial Statements Performed in Accaordance with
Government Auditing Standards,

. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of Bossier Parish Police Jury

were disclosed during the audit.

. No significant deficiencies are reported in the Report on Compliance With Requirements That

Could Have @ Direct and Materal Effsct on Each Major Program and Internal Controt Over
Compliance in Accordance With OMB Circular A-133.

. The auditor's report on compliarice for the major federat award programs for Bossier Parish Police

Jury expresses an ungualified opinion.

. There are no audit findings relative to the major federal award programs for Bossier Parish Police

Jury reported in Part C. of this Schedule,

. The programs tested as major programs included the Low-Income Housing Assistance Program,

CFDA #14.871, and the Highway Planning and Construction (North/South Corridor and Shared
Use Trail), CFDA #20.205.

. The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $300,000.

. Bossler Parish Palice Jury qualifies as a low-risk auditee.

B, Findings — Financia) Statements Audit: None

C. Findings and Questioned Costs — Major Federal Award Programe Auditt  None
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Bossier Parish Police Jusy
Benion, Louisiana
Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings
Schedule For Louisiana Legislative Auditor
December 31, 2011

There were no findings, guestioned costs, or management letter cornments for the prior year audit for the
year ended December 31, 2010.

Corrective Action Plan For Current Year Audit Findings
Schedule For Louisiana Legislative Auditor
December 31, 2011

There are na findings, questioned costs, or management letter comments for the current year audit for the
year ended December 31, 2011.
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